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World-class university research needs business
expertise and funding to turn it into profitable
commercial applications.

Working with our two university partners in Sheffield
and Cardiff, we use our exclusive agreements to bridge
the gap between laboratory-based innovation and
commercial success.

By providing early-stage business acumen and capital
we continue to build a portfolio of fast-growing,

successful companies to deliver dividends or capital

returns for our shareholders.
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Highlights

Business and portfolio highlights:
* Revenue & portfolio return increased by 35% to £5 9m (2010 £4 4m)

s Profit, excluding subsichary spin-out costs and amortisation, increased by 68%
to £4 2m (2010 £2 5m)

¢ Earmings before Interest, Tax, Depreciabion and Amortisation (EBITDA) increased
by 650% to £3 Om (2010 £04m)

* Profit before taxation of £1 Om (2010 £1 6m loss)

* Cash balances of £2 Om (2010 £4 6m)

« Co-investment agreement with IP Group implemented on three occasions

* One new portfolic company started and funded in the year (Perlemax)

* Six portfolio companies in trading phase of growth, three of which are trading profitably

* Portfolio company Simcyp increased turnover by 25% to £5 9m (2010 £4 7m) and
profit by 35% to £2 3m (2010 £1 7m)

* Portiolio company Magnomatics increased turnover by 62% to £1 3m (2010 £0 8m)
¢ £1 6m invested in the portfollo comparies by Fusion {2010 £1 8m)

s £6 1m invested 1n the portfolio comparnues by third party investors (2010 £6 9m)

+ 15 funding rounds completed by portfolio companies (2010 20)

Post year end highlights:

e Diurnal, our Cardiff-based drug development company, completed a £335k funding
round in August that will enable 1ts lead product, Chronocort®, to complete the profile
stage of its Phase | chimical trials

s Mesuro, our Cardiff-based Radio Frequeney {RF} technology company, raised a furiher
£440k 1n August to support its growing sales activity

Recognition:

Following an from last year's awards for Magnomatics and Simcyp, our portfollo companies
continue to be recognised for their achievements

¢ {n December 2010 MedaPhor, our Cardiff based ultrasound simulation company, won
the MediWales Industry Innovation Award for its new ScanTrainer ultrasound simulator
that s revolutionising how medical trainees acqguire the necessary obstetrics and
gynaecology skills needed to safely examine patients, and

* In October 2011 Simcyp won Insider’s ‘Growth 100 Rising Star Award' for the UK's
most promising business
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Chairman’s Statement

| am delighted to present our results for the year ended
31 July 2011, a year during which our revenue and
portfolio returns grew by 35% to £5 9m (2010 £4 4m)
and profit, excluding subsichary spin-out costs and
amortisation, increased by 68% to £4 2m (2010 £2 5m)
In turn our EBITDA during the year increased by 650% to
£3 0m (2010 £0 4m)

The Board and Executive team have concentrated on
progressing the development of our portfolio of companies
and as a result, our portfoho has continued to mature and
grow In value With more than 20 companies in the portfolio,
our strategy 1s to focus on the companies that have the
greatest potential long-term value and the companies that

are nsing stars in the early stages of trading Our aim s to
ensure all these businesses have sufficient management and
funding support from Fusion, such that they have long term
operating security as well as the necessary drive and energy to
ensure they keep growing in the future This focus on success
inevitably means there will be wastage in the portiolio and we
are fully prepared to stop supperting companies that are not
growing In vafue To this end, one company ceased trading
during the period

Corporately, we continue to maintain a tight focus on our
central overhead, whilst developing revenue opportuniies
through bcensing activities This means that the business is
well positioned to maximise the enormous potential value in
our portfolio companies and university research pipelines

Qur model

Research 1s the driver of innovation, wealth creation and
economic prospenty In the right environment, with the right
management, research can be transformed into commercial
innovation that generates significant value for not just our
shareholders, but alse the country as a whole

QOur exclusive P commercialisation agreements with the
Umiversity of Sheffield and Cardiff University give us long-
term, exclusive rights over the commercialisation of the
world-class research being generated by these two feading
universities This research 1s worth over £200m per annum
and we use our privileged access to this research to identify
innovative technologies that have the potential to be high
value businesses To diminish the inherent nsks associated
with these early stage compames and technologies we apply
strict investment critera, combined with our technological/
entrepreneunal expertise, management experience and fund-
raising capabiiity through all stages of therr lifecycle

Investment Partners

During the year, we have continued to develop our
retationships with both IP Group and Finance Wales and these
relationships continue to bear frut Dunng the year IP Group
invested n three portfolio companies and Finance Wales
invested in four

People

The sad and untimely death of Professor Tony Atkinson in
June was a shock to the Group Tony was a member of the
Board since the Group’s listing n 2005 and was both a
reliable source of advice and a good friend to all the Board
He will be greatly missed

In April our Finance Director, Tony Gardner, left the Group to
pursue other business interests Tony has been a valuable and
significant contributor to the Group since he joined in 2007
and we wish him every success with his new company

Outlook

Qur prionity in the year ahead 1s to continue to focus on the
growth of the portfolio and maximise value realisation, through
trade sales or flotations, as appropnate The Group anticipates
it will need to generate additional funds dunng the year, and
believes 1t can achieve this either through trade sale exits

or dividends However the directors continue to review all
financing and resourcing options

The vatue of our portfolio 1s growing and we anticipate

we will be able to demonstrate this further in the current
financial year, and remain focused on achieving our first cash
realisation We look forward with confidence

Finally, | would like to thank all our stakeholders, including our
university partners, and particularly our employees at Group
and portfolio level, of which there are now nearly 250, for their
unstinting efferts and support in the past year

L Al

Doug Liversidge CBE
Chairman




Chief Executive’s Statement

This has been another excellent year for the Group and we
now have more than 20 companies in our portfolio, emptoying
nearly 250 staff (including executive and non-executive
Directors), a well-balanced asset base of engineenng, software
and medical businesses at varying stages of maturnity, growth
and profitabihty

Our leading portfolio companies
The six leading companies n the portfolio are

Simcyp - software/sctence

Simcyp 15 3 profitable Sheffield based company, which provides
modelling and simulation technology and consultancy services
{o the global pharmaceutical industry The company continued
to grow strongly 1n 2010/11 The company expects to exceed

is forecasts for the seventh year in a row, with unaudited
numbers suggesting a 25% increase in turnover (2010 £4 7m)
and 35% increase in profit before tax (2010 £1 7m) Retaining
considerable cash holdings, the company 1s expected to show
strong growth in the current year and beyond

Simcyp tools allow pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies to evaluate their medicines in the safety of a
computer, prior to studies in humans The Simcyp Simulator
uses data which 1s routinely generated in drug discovery and
development to model and simulate how a drug 1s absorbed,
distributed, metabolised and excreted by the body, as well
as providing information on its effects and any potential
drug-drug interactions Simulations, carnied m virtual human
populations, capture real-life variability, which allows chents
to prioritise and optimise the design of climical studies This
saves significant time and money 1n drug development

Simcyp also develops and licenses virtual ammal models
that can help to reduce, refine or even replace testing in
laboratory animals

Simeyp currently holds contracts with 16 of the 20 largest
pharmaceutical companies worldwide, mcluding the entire top
ten, and duning the year opened an office in Boston, USA to
keep pace with its global expansion

Fusion has a 20 8% (undiluted) shareholding in Simcyp

Magnomatics - engineenng

Magnomatics, Fusion's Sheffield-based electric motor
company, continues to grow strongly and has won prestigious
new chents in the automotive, aerospace and defence sectors
Product development continues to advance on plan and
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turnover, on a like for like basis, 1s expected to grow by 100%
during the 12 month period ending December 2011 (year-
ended July 2010, £0 8m)

Magnomatics develops high torque magnetic transmissions
and ultra-compact magnetically geared motors and
generators The technology uses magnetic fields with high-
powered permanent magnets to replace the meshed teeth
that normally transmit mechanical power in gear systems The
magnetic fields ehminate the friction of contacting parts As
such the technology requires Iittle to no maintenance There
15 no need for ol lubrication and gears are not “stripped”
through misuse Motion 1s transferred through air gaps
between rings allowing for a quieter and smoother operation
The lack of fniction decreases the need for cooling systems,
while the technology allows for more compact packaging The
product offers dramatic new engineering possibilities ranging
from efficient, gearless generators for wind turbines, to lighter
and more compact motors for hybnd vehicles

Magnomatics has signed vanous large development contracts
with the Ministry of Defence so that defence equipment
suppliers can assess the potenhal for its use within propulsion
systems for future naval vessels Also in this past year,
Magnomatics was part of a consortium that won a £3m
Department of Transport low carbon grant to develop an urban
Ightweight refuse collection vehicle that will halve carbon
emissions of current best-in-class Refuse Caollection Vehicles

In February 2011, Magnomatics announced its involvement

In key research initiatives, with total budgets of over $25m,
from which Magnomatics expects to earn £1 4m in the current
penod Other research projects include two new EU initiatives
In which Magnoematics will be working together with leading
engineering compantes Siemens AG, Volkswagen and Fiat
The focus of the projects 1s on the development of eco-
fnendly, energy efficient vehicles including new concepts far
urban driving and electnic vehicles

In February 2011, Magnomatics appointed Dr Michael

Lloyd as Chairman Dr Lloyd was the former president of
Rolis Royce Gas Turbine Operations and brings experience
in key markets for Magnomatics including the defence,
nuclear and aerospace sectors He is a Fellow of the Institute
of Engineening and Technology, Fellow of the Institute of
Mechanical Engineers, Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical
Soctety, and Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineers

Fusion has a 48% (undiluted) shareholding in Magnomatics
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Chief Executive’s Statement continued

Our leading portfolio companies continued
Phase Focus — software/engineering

Phase Focus, the Sheffield-based microscopy company,
raised £0 Sm at the end of July 2011 to expand its operations,
grow sales and conclude commercial deals with its
commercial partners As a result of this investment Fusion's
stake reduced to 49 1% on an undiluted basis This company
1s now held as an investment and 1s deconsolidated from the
Group's results going forwards

The Phase Focus Virtual Lens eliminates the need for high-
quahty lenses 1in microscopes by transferring the image
production to 2 computer programme This disruptive
innovation 1s expected to revolutionise micrescopy The
technology enables higher performance at a lower cost,
ehminating the need for high quality lenses that have
traditionally accounted for a substantial portion of the expense
of high performance microscopes It also generates new
information that enables a range of novel applications The
Virtial Lens generates images from the diffraction pattern
created when a specimen is luminated Potentally applicable
to the full electromagnetic spectrum as well as to electron

and other particle waves, the Virtual Lens has demanstrated
significant interest in a broad range of applications from
cellutar assays and semiconductor and engineering metrology
to X-ray and electron microscopy

The Company’s OEM software licensing model enables

it to operate with relatively low overheads and low capital
expenditure, which should translate into high margins The
Company is also now revenue generating, with commercial
relationshups wath OEMs in several multti-bilhon dollar
markets, including the $8bn contact lens market, the $2 1bn
semiconductor metrology market and the $1 6bn electron
rmicroscopy market

Fusion has a 49% (undiluted) shareholding in Phase Focus

Seren Photomics — engineenng

Based in Sheffield, Seren Photonics 1s commercialising

its revolutionary highly efficient light-emitting diode (LED)
technology that brings together nanoscience and fundamental
physics to increase the efficiency by which a light-emitting
diode (LED) converts energy into light It increases light
output creation from an existing LED wafer [eading to either
significantly brighter illumination or greatly reduced power
consumption in the packaged device

in 2010 the LED market was valued at over $5bn and 1s
forecast to increase to more than $12bn by 2013 Applications
for Seren’s LED technology include backlighting for laptop
computers, smartphones, flatscreen televistons, signs and
displays and domeshic and architectural lighting

its seed fundmng round enabled the Company to build its first
pilot scale high-brightness (HB) LEDs for showcasing to larger
HB LED companies and the company is in negotiations with a
number of global LED manufactunng companes

Fusion [P holds a 48% {(undiluted) stake in Seren

Dwurnal - drug development

Diurnat, our Cardiff-based drug development company,
completed a £335k funding round in August 2011 that will
enable its lead product, Chronocort®, to continue its Phase
I chinical trials This follows on from the £0 6m raised in
November 2009 and the £0 4m raised in November 2010
The company i1s due to complete its extended Phase 1 tnals
n early 2012, before embarking on Phase 2 trials prior to
sale or licensing

Chronocort 1s Diurnal’s lead product and it delivers
hydrocortisone in a manner that mimics the body’s normal
circadian rhythm (the body’s natural 24 hour hormone

cycle) to improve the drug's efficacy and reduce adverse

side effects This therapeutic approach has the potential

to help patients with deficiencies in the steroid hormone
cortisol namely adrenal nsufficiency and congenital adrenal
hyperplasia These deficiencies require hfe-long treatment and
Diurnal’'s novel approach to drug delivery has the potential to
drastically improve patients’ lives

Chronocort has significant potential as the first circadian
based formulation to launch in the market for adrenal
insufficiency (including congenital adrenal hyperplasia),
which 1s beheved to be a market that exceeds $200m
Chronocort has already received orphan drug designation in
the EU enabling 10 years market exclusivity post marketing
authorisation in Europe

Fusion IP held a 43% stake in Dwrnal at the year-end

Asalus Medical Instruments — medical devices

Based in Cardiff, Asalus i1s developing a range of innovative
medical devices that will improve the safety and effictency
of laparascopic surgery In December 2010 Asalus
successfully completed a £510k funding round that

will enable it to further develop its first three products
Innervision, Snugport and Surehold

Laparoscopic surgery 15 a modern surgical technique in
which operations in the abdomen are performed through
small incisions, as compared to the larger incisions needed
in traditicnal surgical procedures There are several benefits
to conducting laparoscopic surgery and, as a result, the
number of procedures conducted using this technique has
grown rapidly over recent years Over 2 million laparoscopic
operations per year are now performed in the USA alone
The market for laparoscopic surgery products 1s estimated



at approximately $18bn worldwide, growing 7-8% annually
Asalus currently has three lead projects in development,
which it is looking to commercialise through partnerships
with leading medical device comparies

The Company continues to achieve all of its key milestones,
with parbicular interest being generated by its novel Innervision
product Innervision is an efficient smoke and steam
clearance system which silently and continually clears smoke
without the need for intervention by the surgeon Asalus’s
management estimates that Innervision could be used in more
than 4 million surgical procedures annually

Fusion IP holds a 45% (undiluted) stake in Asalus

Our portfolio nsing stars

The following compames represent our potential nsing

stars They are either fast growing, on the cusp of or already
breaking through into profit, or with innovative technologies
that are meeting development milestones and proving
successful in the marketplace

12L Research — environmental testing

Based in Cardiff, 12L Research is a fast-growing product
testing and development centre for the pest control industry
and agrochemtcals industry across Europe The company,
which has offices in Newcastle and Cardiff, 1s expanding

Its operations into Europe, through its new offices in Czech
Republic and Spain

During the year, 12L tncreased its turnover by 40% to

£1 1m (2010 £0 8m} and its profits by 200% to £0 15m
(2010 £005m) It 1s anticipated that this growth will
continue In 2012

Fusion has a 31% (undiluted) sharehalding in 12L Research

MedaPhor — medical simulation

MedaPhor 1s a Cardiff-based ultrasound simulation business,
specialising in the development and sale of advanced, virtual
ultrasound training systems for the healthcare service

The company’s new ScanTrainer simulator Is designed to
teach all the core and advanced obstetrics and gynaecology
ultrasound skills in a non-chinical environment, without the
need for a patient to learn on and with minimal time from

a utor By combining ‘real feel” simulation, virtual patients
with muttiple pathologies and trainee feedback, the system
enables a tranee to self learn the key ultrasound skills, prior
{o patient contact This significantly increases a trainee’s
speed of skill acquisition, because it removes the current
constraints on tratming caused by the hmitations of tutor
resource and patient access
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A range of diagnostic and image interpretation case studies
have recently been added to the system, broadening the
appeal of the system to the expernenced practitioner

Launched in 2010, the award winning ScanTrainer system has
been sold intoc 12 UK hospitals and the company has recently
made its first sales nio the all-important US and European
market With distributors covering an additional eight countries
in the Far East, the company's sales pipeline i1s expected to
grow in 2012 Further products in the ScanTrainer range are
planned during the next 12 months

Fusion has a 38% (undiluted) shareholding in MedaPhor

Absynth - lifesciences

Absynth was founded in 2007 and 1s based in Sheffield The
Company Is developing vaccine and therapeutic antibody
candidates for the prevention and treatment of bactenal
infections The Company's lead program focuses on infections
caused by the bacterium Staphylococcus Aureus and the
Methicilin-resistant form, MRSA

Hospital-acquired infections are a senous healthcare 1ssue
Patients acquinng infections in hospital stay on average two
and a half times longer In hospital Tetal costs of healthcare
related infections to the NHS are estimated at £1bn per year,
of which roughly half are attributed to the MRSA bug Costs
to the economy related to MRSA in the UK alone have been
estimated at between £3bn and £11bn

Absynth 1s continuing its icense and ccllaboration agreement
with the German-based biotechnology company, MorphoSys
{the agreement was signed in September 2010} Absynth has
received upfront paymenis and ongoing research funding
together with future prospects for development-dependent
milestone payments and long-term royalties

Absynth has six patent families on all targets involved in the
vaccine and antibody programmes, with three granted patents
to date

Fusion has a 52% (undiluted) shareholding in Absynth and its
results are consolidated into the group figures

Mesuro — electronics

Mesuro 1s based in Cardiff and focuses on the development
of solutions {Open Loop, Active Harmomic Load Pull) that
provide performance improvements in the design and
manufacture of RF {radio frequency) devices, microwave
devices and amplifiers Mesuro's technology gives advantages
to manufacturers such as improved device efficiency and
product performance, reduction in design cycles and time to
market, and reduced power consumption
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Qur portfolio nsing stars continued

The Company started generating its first sales in 2011 and
has raised an additional £440k duning this calendar year to
support Its sales efforts

Fusion has a 47% (undiluted) holding in Mesuro

Our new portfolio companies
During the year we created one new spin-out company

Perlemax - environmental engineering

Perlemax Limited was founded on the research of Professor
Wil Zimmerman, Chair of Biochemical Dynamical Systems
at the Department of Chemical and Biological Engineering at
the University of Sheffield Professor Zimmerman’s invention
enables the super efficient generation of micro sized bubbles
of gas This process can greatly improve the efficiency of all
gas exchange, ranging from wastewater treatment to algae
growth for biofuels Perlemax 1s working with a number of
engineers to incorporate its technology within processes in
and cutside the UK Perlemax has started generating income,
and made a small profit during its first year of trading

Research pipeline potential

We continue to be excited about the depth and breadth of

the research emanating from our two uruversity partners

Beth universities continue to invest not only m world-leading
research programmes, but also the capital expendiiure
required to build world-leading facilities in which to conduct
the research Each university has received external recognition
for the quality of its research qutput and atiracts internationally
renowned experts to lead its research teams

We have strong relationships with the relevant acaderics and
technology transier teams at both universities and this ensures
we have good vistbility over research activities spend that 1s
worth over £200m per annum

Several other promising opportunities have been identifiad,
at varnious paints of the pipeline, on both campuses and
our commercialisation team 1s working with the umversity
and academics to 1denbfy the best market applications and
business proposals for these new technologies in 2012

David Baynes
Chief Executive Officer




Financial Review

Summary

For the second year n a row, the Group generated a profit
(excluding subsidiary spin-out costs and amortisation),
recording figures of £4,175,000 {2010 £2,517.000) The
Group also reported its first profit before tax of £1,046,000
(2010 Iloss £1,600,000) Closing cash balances were
£1,862,000 (2010 £4,610,000) The value of the Group’s
investments in non-subsidiary spin-out companies increased
to £16,768,000 (2010 £10,788,000)

Revenue

Total revenue and portfolio returns increased to £5,894,000

(2010 £4,363,000) due to increases in revenue and net farr
value gains on investments, and gains on the deconsolidation
of Phase Focus and Diurnal

Revenue, which includes the amounts charged to non-
subsidiary spin-out companies for management services
provided, licence income and development grants receved,
decreased to £975,000 (2010 £1,137,000)

The net gatn in the fair value of investments amounted

to £3,204,000 (2010 £2,590,000) The Group's gains
arose from valuation uphfts in seven of the Group’s

holdings during the year, with uphfts in Simcyp, Phase
Focus and Diurnal being the major component, the latter
two companies triggered deconsclidation gains as their
accumulated losses were taken out of the Group’s results
upon deconsolidation Fair value write downs and provisions
were taken on five investments as we applied a critical eye
to company prospects versus funding requirements

2011 2010

£000 £000

Fair value gains 3,983 3,671
Fair value losses (779} (1,081}
3,204 2,590

The gain on disposal of subsidiaries of £1,679,000

(2010 £545,000) relates to the two subsidiary spin-out
investments Phase Focus and Diurnal in which the Group's
holding has failen below 50% following completion of funding
rounds in the year

Operating expenses
Operating expenses have decreased to £4,910,000

{2010 £5,956,000) and are broken down into
three components

s corporate operating expenses of £1,719,000
{2010 £1,839,000) reflect the cost of running the
Parent PLC company together with the Sheffield
and Card/ff operations
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¢ subsidiary spin-out operating expenses of £1,196,000
(2010 £2,119,000), which are consolidated into the Group’s
results by wvirtue of Fusion's >50% shareholding 1n each
spn-out company Twao significant deconsolidations occurred
dunng the year (Dwrnal - November 2010, and Phase Focus
— July 2011) which reduced the impact of consolidated costs
gong forwards, and

* amortisation of intangible assets of £1,995,000 (2010
£1,998,000) which reflects the charge over the Cardiff
and Sheffield IP nghts which are both being amortised on
a straight line basis over the ten-year pipeline agreements,
together with an amortisation charge for purchased patent
costs within certain subsidiary spin-out companies

Investments

As at 31 July 2011 mvestments in spin-out companies
amounted to £16,768,000 (2010 £10,788,000) Additions
during the year amounted to £1,594,000 (2010 £1,801,000)
and consist of equity investments, convertible loan investments
and accrued interest to a number of portfolio companies

The investments are all classified as financial assets and are held
at fair value under 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments Recogrution
and Measurement” The Group uses the International Private
Equity and Venture Capital Valuation (IPEVCY) guidelines to
establish the fair value of unlisted securibes

Intangible Assets and Liabilities

IP rights comprise IP, patents and licences purchased

by the Group together with the IP pipelines with Cardiff
University and the University of Sheffield As outlined
above, the Group’s view I1s that these assets have a finite
Ife of ten years and to that extent they should be amortised
over therr respective unexpired penods with proviston
made for any impairment when required IP rights are
tested annually for impairment and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses

Non-current liabiltties totalling £3,189,000 (2010
£3,304,000) consist of two components classified as amounts
owed to related parties

Firstly the Group owes amounts totalling £2,216,000
(2010 £2,162,000) to the University of Sheffield and
Cardiff Unmiversity in relation to loan notes and accrued
interest, ansing from the purchase of the Group's interest
in certain spin-out companies when the IP pipeline
agreements were signed in 2005 and 2007 respectively

Secondly, as a result of the expanded Sheffield agreement
signed in 2008, there 1s an amount of deferred consideration
due to the Uriversity of Shetfield, representing 785,609
Ordinary shares (2010 785,609 Qrdinary shares) which

will be 1ssued once further Ordinary shares are 1ssued to
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Financial Review continued

the extent that its shareholding does not exceed 29 9%

of the 1ssued share capital of the Company No further
Ordinary shares were 1ssued this year, hence this deferred
consideration remains unchanged from last year

Cash flows

The Group’s ¢cash balances at 31 July 2011 amount to
£1,962,000 (2010 £4 610,000) These balances include
£257,000 (2010 £258,000) in relation to consolidated
subsidiary spin-out companies

The cash cutflow In the year amounted to £2,648,000
(2010 £423,000) and can be summarised as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Net cash used In
operating activities (2,045) (2,827)
Net cash used in
investing activities (603) (585)
Net cash fram
financing activities - 2,989
(2,648) (423)

The net cash used in investing activities reflects two
main components

¢ amounts invested in spin-aut companies which
are nct subsidiary undertakings £1,405,000
(2010 £1,515,000), and

* amounts received by subsidiary spin-cut companies
from third-party investors of £nil (2010 £853,000)

Share capital
There were no changes In share capital during the year




Board of Directors

Doug Liversidge CBE
Chairman

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 1 December 2004
He was employed for 21 years at Bntish Stee!, before moving to
G W Thornton Limited as managing director and subsequently
chief executive He guided the company through its flotation on
the full list of the London Stock Exchange in 1987

Doug acts as a senior industrnial advisor to the University of
Sheffield and was awarded the CBE in the 2000 New Year’s
Honours List for services to industry He is also the non-
executive chairman of Surgical Innovations plc

David Baynes
Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP pic on 2 November 2004
Dawvid has previously worked at Celsis International pfc from its
incorperation to its flotation on the full st of the London Stock
Exchange 1n 1993, Toad plc {now 21st Century Technology
ple), which he co-founded and was responsible for taking the
company from start-up to a full isting on the Londoen Stock
Exchange, Whereonearth Limited, and Codemasters Limited

Stuart Gall
Commercial Director

Apponted to the Board of Fusion IP ple on 27 Apnl 2005
Stuart has expenence in both small company start-ups and
public companies and spectalises in marketing, communications
and new business development He has previously worked at
British Airways plc, The Fromotions Partnership Limited, Anvi!
Limited and Toad plc (now 21st Century Technology plc)

Dr Peter Grant
Operations Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 1 December

2004 Peter has a PhD in biochemistry from Cardiff University
and has previously worked at Genzyme UK Limited, Celltech
Limited, Enzymatix Limited and Celsis plc, which he co-
founded and took to a full listing on the London Stock Exchange
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Dawid Catton
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 1 December
2004 David was previously managing director of SUEL, the
University of Sheffield’s tech transfer operation Prior ta this
David worked for Ford Motor Company, British Leyland, Rank
Xerox Limited and Cambridge Consultants Limited

Mike Davtes
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 29 January 2007
Mike i1s Cardiff University’s director of physical and financial
resources He has gained extensive experience of Cardiff's
technology transfer activities through his role as chairman

of UC3 and as a director/company secretary of the General
Partner Board of the Cardiff Partnership Fund

Dr Alison Fielding
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion IP plc on 29 January

2010 Ahson is the Chief Technology Officer of 1P Group plc
Ahson co-founded Techtran Group Limited and was the Chief
Operating Officer of Techiran when it was acquired by 1P
Group In January 2005 Previously, she worked for McKinsey
& Co and Zeneca plc Alisen holds an MBA from Manchester
Business Schoo! and a PhD in organic chemistry from the
Umiversity of Glasgow

Bob Rabone
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board of Fusion |P plc on 31 July 2008

Bob 1s director of finance and resources for the University

of Sheffield He previously worked as part of the senior
management team of the international law firm, Eversheds LLP
and prior to that held several finance director positions in both
public and private orgarusations
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Directors’ Report

The Directers present therr report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 July 2011

Results and dividend

Group profit for the year after taxation amounted to
£1,046,000 (2010 loss £1,600,000) The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dwvidend (2010 £nil)

Principal activity

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group

and i1s incorporated by shares in England and Wales The
Company's subsidrary undertakings are detailed in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements The Group’s principal
actvity 1s the commercialisation of intellectual property {IP)
that 1s developed at universites and similar establishments

Business review

The information, which is necessary to fulfil the requirements
of the Business Review, 1s iIncorporated within the respective
Charman and Chief Executive Statements

Directors

The names of the Directors who held office during the
financial year are as follows

Executive

D Baynes

P Grant

S Gall

T Gardiner (appointed 5 October 2010, resigned 28 Apnl 2011)

Non-executive

D Liversidge CBE (Chairman)

T Atkinson {died 19 June 2011}
D Catton

M Davies

B Rabone

A Fielding

The Company Secretary 1s R Birtles

Major interest in shares

As at 5 October 2011, according to the Company's register,
the following shareholders each held 3% or more of the
Company’s 1ssued share capital

Ordinary %
Name 1p shares holding
The University of
Sheffield 12,895,541 238
Cardiff University 10,997,541 203
IP Group plc 10,740,741 198
Invesco Limited 5,570,363 103
AXA Framlington 4112647 758
Legal & General 3,325,926 61
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Directors’ interests in shares

The Directors at 31 July 2011 with interests 1n the share
capital of the Company were as follows

31 July
The Company — ordinary 1p shares 2011
D Baynes 1,333,332
P Grant 1,333,332
S Gall 1,333,332
D biversidge (Charrman) 10,000

Apart from the interests disclosed above, no Directors held
interests at any time 1n the year in the share capital or loan
stock of the Company or other Group comparnies

The Directors' interests in respect of options to acquire Ordinary
shares are set out in the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s financial nsk management objectives and
policies, including those relating to interest rate risk,
hquidity nsk and market pnice risk, are provided in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements, along with further
information on the Group's use of financial Instruments

Creditor payment policy
The Group’s policy 1s to

¢ establish the payment terms with suppliers when agreeing
the terms of supply,

* ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment,
and

= adhere to the agreed terms

The Group’s average creditor payment period at
31 July 2011 was 21 days (2010 15 days) The Company
has no trade creditors

Employee participation

The Group values the involvement of its employees and keeps
them informed of matters affecting them as employees and on
the various factors affecting the performance of the Group

Equal opportunities

The Group endorses and supports the principles of equal
employment opportunities 1t 1s the policy of the Group to
provide equal employment opportunities to all qualified
individuals which ensures that all employment decisions
are made, subject to legal obhgations, on a non-
discniminatory basis




Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always
fully considered, bearing in mind the aphtudes of the applicant
concerned In the event of members of staff becoming
disabled, every effort is made to ensure that the training,
career development and promotion opporturities of disabled
persons should, as far as possible, be identical with those of
other employees

Political and chantable donations

During the year the Group has made no pohtical or chantable
donations (2010 £nil)

Proviston of information to auditors

So far as each of the Directors 1s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit informatron of which the Group's auditors are unaware
Each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Directer to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group's audiors are
aware of that information

Annual general meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Group will be held at
10 30am on Friday 25 November 2011 at the offices of
Ashurst LLP, Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London
EC2A 2HA

Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006,
a resolution for the re-appeointment of KPMG Audit Plc will be
proposed at the forthcormng Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

David Baynes
Chief Executive
10 October 2011

Fusion {P ple Annual Report and Accounts 2011
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Report on the Directors’ Remuneration

This Report on the Directors’ Remuneration sets out the
Company's policy on the remuneration of Executive and
Non-executive Directors, together with details of Directors’
remuneration packages and service contracts

Remuneration Committee

For the financial year ended 31 July 2011, remuneration
policy for Executive and Non-executive Directors and the
determination of indmdual Executive Directors' remuneration
packages have been delegated to the Board’s Remuneration
Committee comprising three Non-executive Directors, one of
which 1s the Non-executive Chairman

In setting the remuneration policy, the Remuneration
Committee considers a number of factors including

» the basic salanes and benefits avallable to Executive
Directors of comparable comparues,

* the need to attract and retain Directors of an
appropnate calibre,

* fthe need to ensure Executive Directors’ commitment to the
continued success of the Company by means
of ncentive schemes, and

* the need for the remuneration awarded to
reflect performance

Remuneration of the Non-executive Directors

D Lwersidge, T Atkinson and D Catton received a fee for

therr services The fee I1s agreed by the Board following
recommendation by the Chairman with a view to rates paid

In comparable organisations and appointments They did

not recewve any pension or other benefits from the Company,
nor did they participate in any bonus or incentive schemes
other than share options They each have a three-year service
contract with the Company with three months’ notice either
side After thus time their appointment is reviewed annually

M Davies, who represents Cardiff University, B Rabone, who
represents the University of Sheffield and A Fielding, who
represents !P Group plc receive no fee for their services and
as a result of this do not have service contracts

Remuneration policy for Executive Directors
The Company’s remuneration policy for Executive Directors s to
* have regard to the Directors’ experience and the nature and

comptexity of ther work in order to pay a competitive salary
that attracts and retains management of the highest quality,

* link indwidual remuneration packages to the Group's
tong-term performance through the award of discretionary
bonus schemes, and
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* provide employment-related benefits including life
assurance, nsurance relating to the Directors’ duties and
medical insurance

Salaries and benefits

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
constder and set the annual salaries for Executive Directors
having regard to personal performance and information
regarding the remuneration practices of companies of a similar
size and of industry competitors Executive Directors’ salares
were last reviewed in January 2011 No increases in Executive
pay were approved at that time

Directors’ service contracts

The service contracts of the Executive Directors provide for six
months’ notice of termination Other than the notice periods
afforded to the Executive and Non-executive Directors, there
are no special provisions for compensation in the event of

loss of office The Remuneration Committee considers the
circumstances of indwidual cases of early termination and
determines compensation payments accordingly

Details of indmwdual Directors’ service contracts are as follows

Unexpired
Effective term at Notice
contract date 31 July period
D Lersidge* 1 December
{Chairman) 2004 n/a 3 months
26 January
D Baynes 2005 n/a & months
26 January
P Grant 2005 n/a & months
S Gall 1 Apnil 2005 n/a & months
1 December
D Catton 2004 n/a 3 months

T Service contract 1s via an agreement with Quest Investments Limited

The Directors are required to retire by rotation once every
three years None of the Directors are required to retire by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Non-executive directorships

With the permission of the Chairman, the Executive Directors
may accept appointments as non-executive directors Where
an Executive Director accepts an appointment to the board
of a company in which the Group 1s a sharehclder, the Group
retains the Director's fees Fees earned for directorships of
companies in which the Group does not have a shareholding
will be retained by the Director




Directors’ detailed emoluments

Detalls of individual Directors’ emoluments for the year are as follows
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Salary Pension Total Total
and fees Bonuses contnbutions Benefits 2011 2010
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive

D Baynes 163,375 - 16,338 - 179,713 177,520
P Grant 140,000 - 14,000 1,659 155,659 153,788
S Gall 140,000 - 14,000 1,469 155,469 153,890
T Gardiner (resigned 28 Apnil 2011) 87,525 - 10,698 862 99,085 129,570

Non-executive
D Liversidge (Chairman) 36,000 - - - 36,000 36,000
T Atkinson (deceased 19 June 2011) 25,500 - - - 25,500 25,500
D Catton 12,750 - - - 12,750 12,750
605,150 — 55,036 3,990 664,176 689,018

The pension contributions are paid into private pension plans nominated by the related Directors or can be included with the
basic salary During the year D Baynes chose to have accrued pension contributions amounting to £16,338 paid as basic salary

M Davies, B Rabone and A Fielding receve no emoluments for their role as Non-executive Directors

Directors’ interests in share options

Details of ophions held by Directors over the Company's Ordinary shares of 1p are set out below

As at As at Earliest

31 July 31 July Exercise exercise
2010 2011 price date  Expiry date
D Liversidge 50,000 50,000 33 5p 310712 310719
T Atkinson {deceased 19 June 2011) 33,333 33,333 150p 280108 280115
T Atkinson {deceased 19 June 2011) 50,000 50,000 335p 310712 310719
D Catton 33,333 33,333 150p 280108 280115
D Catton 50,000 50,000 33 5p 310712 310719

The market price of the Company’s shares at the end of the financial year was 25 5p (2010 29 5p) and the range of market
prices dunng the year was 32p to 21 5p (2010 34 5p to 29 5p)

Each option will vest monthly as to 1/36th of the Ordinary shares under option on the expiry of each month following the date of
the grant until the third anniversary of the date of the grant when the option shall become fully vested Any vested portion of the
options will normally be exercisable between the expiry of the third manth after the date of the grant and the tenth anniversary
of the date of the grant No performance conditions are required to be met Options will become iImmediately exercisable in

full on the death of the option-holder for a periad of tweive months from the date of death If an option-holder ceases to be a
Non-executive Director of the Company for any reason other than death, hus option (io the extent unexercised and unvested)
will lapse On a change of control or a voluntary winding-up of the Company, options may be exercised in full for a fixed pernod
Options will lapse on the expiry of ten years from their date of grant
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Report on the Directors’ Remuneration contnued

Directors’ interests in share options continued

Untit options are exercised, the option-holders have no voting or
other rights in respect of the Qrdinary shares under therr options
Ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Share Option Agreements
shall rank pari passu in all respects with the Ordinary shares
already in 1ssue except that they will not rank for any dividend

or other distnbution announced prior to the date of the exercise
Options are not transferable nor are they pensionable

On 27 January 2005, D Baynes, P Grant and S Gall granted
an option to D Liversidge entitling him to acquire 97,756
Ordinary shares from each of them at an aggregate exercise
pnice of £44,000 The options can be exercised at any time
prior to 27 January 2015 D Liversidge has undertaken to
the Company to indemnify it from any PAYE and employers’
national Insurance contnbutions payable by the Group as a
result of the exercise of any or all of these options

o

Doug Liversidge CBE
Chairman
10 October 2011

14




Corporate Governance

The Board acknowledges the importance of the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance {the “Code™} Whitst the Group
1s not required to report on compliance with the Code since

its shares are traded on AIM, every effort 1s made to comply
with the Code The statement below describes how principles
of corporate governance have been consistently complied with
by the Group throughout the year

The workings of the Board and its commuttees
The Board

The Board currently comprises five Non-executive Directors
and three Executive Directors and 15 responsible for the
management of the Group As disclosed on page 13,

D Liversidge and D Catton have some share options in

the Company, however the Board considers them to be
independent because the number of share options are not
considered to be matenal B Rabone, M Davies and A Fielding
by virtue of their roles with the University of Sheffield, Cardiff
Unwersity and IP Group plc respectively are not considered to
be independent Non-executive Directors

The Board meets at least six imes a year, setting and
monitonng Group strategy, reviewing trading performance,
reviewing and agreeing on investments in spin-out companies
and formulating policy on key 1ssues Day to day operational
decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors Key 1ssues
reserved for the Board include the consideration of potential
investments, share i1ssues and fund raising and the setting

of Group strategy, City public relations and the review and
evaluation of significant nisks facing the business

Briefing papers are drstnibuted to all Birectors in advance

of Board meetings All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary who I1s responsible

for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
applicable rules and regulations are complied with The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a
matter for the Board as a whole In addition, procedures are in
place to enable Directors to obtain independent professional
advice in the furtherance of their duties If necessary, at the
Company's expense

The Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee compnises D Liversidge and D Catton
The Audit Commuttee's remit 1s set out in its terms of reference
and meets with the auditors at least twice a year The
Committee assists the Board in ensuning that the Group's
published financial statements give a true and fair view and
that, where the audiiors provide non-audit serwices, their
objectivity and independence 1s safeguarded

Due to the nature and size of the Group at present it would not
be appropnate for the Company to have its own internal audit
department reporting directly to the Audit Commuittee

Fusion IP plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee compnises D Liversidge and

D Catton and A Fielding When necessary non-committee
members are invited to attend No Director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration The Commuttee 1s responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the scale and
structure of remuneration for senior management, including
the award of share options

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises the Non-executive
Directors and ts chatred by the Chairman, D Liversidge

It meets as necessary and 1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointments of
Executive and Non-executive Directors When required, it 1s
the usual practice of the Nomination Committee to employ
speciahst external search and selection consultants o assist
in the appointment process for new Executive and Non-
executive Directors

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for the Audit, Remuneration and
Nommation Committees are available on request from the
Company Secretary

Relations with shareholders

Key members of the Executive Board regularly visit
institutional nvestors and the full Board makes itself avalable
to questions at all the shareholder meetings it holds The
Chief Executive reports back to the Board views of investors
obtained at analysts’ and brokers’ briefings The Board will use
the Annual General Meeting te communicate with private and
institutional investors and welcomes their participation

In addition the Group operates a website, which can be found
at www fusionip co uk The website contains the tnformation
about the Group that I1s required by AIM Rule 26 That
information can be found under the section of the website
headed Investor Relations and contains, amongst other
information, details on the Group and its activities, the Group's
regulatory announcements, its Annual Reports and Intenm
Reports and details of the Group's share price

Going concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expeciation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparning the financial statements
Further details are provided in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements
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Corporate Governance continued

Internal controls

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing

its effectiveness Internal control systems are designed to
meet the particular needs of the Group and the nsks to
which it is exposed The internal control procedures are
regularly reviewed on an ongoing basis to identify, evaluate
and manage ihe significant risks faced by the Group The
procedures are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
nsk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonabfe but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss

The key procedures which the Directors have established with
a view to providing effective internal control are as follows

+ the Board has overall responsibility for the Group and there
15 & formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for
decision by the Board Each Executive Director has been
given responsibitity for specific aspects of the Group’s
affairs The Executive Directors meet monthly to discuss
operational matters including management and technical
reports, government and fiscal policy 1ssues, employment
and information technology and cash control procedures,

* the Directors have established control procedures in
response to key nsks Standardised financial control
procedures operate throughout the Group to ensure the
ntegrity of the Group's financial statements The Board
has established procedures for authansation of capital
and revenue expenditure, and

+ the Board reviews the Group’s performance aganst
detailed budgets and working capital forecasts on a
bi-monthly basis

Statement of the Directors’ responstbilities in respect
of the Annual Report, Directors’ Report and the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
Directors’ Report and the Group and Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Dwectors to prepare group and
parent company financial statements for each financiat year
As reguired by the AIM rules of the London Stock Exchange
they are required to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable
law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial
statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
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Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period In
preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are requied to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

¢ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
EU, for the Parent Company financial statements, state
whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group
and the Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Group's website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdichions
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Independent Auditor’s Repor‘t to the members of Fusion IP plc

We have audited the financial statements of Fusion IP plc for
the year ended 31 July 2011 set out on pages 18 to 40 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable
faw and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the EU The financial reporting framewaork that
has been apphed in the preparation of the Parent Company
financial statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Ttus report is made solely to the Company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent perrmutted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyore other than
the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 16, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinion on, the

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you (f,
1IN our gpinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the Parent Company financial statements are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
taw are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

financial statements 1in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those l W
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices

Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/
scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affarrs as
at 31 July 2011 and of the Group's profit for the year then
ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

* the Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

» the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance

with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Dawvid Morntt (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

KPMG lLeeds

1 The Embankment
Neville Street

Leeds

LS| 4DW

[0 Octoser LOIC
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 July 2011

2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Revenue and portfolto return
Revenue 5 975 1,137
Dividend income 36 91
Change in fair value of iInvestments 15 3,204 2,590
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 15 1,679 545
5,884 4,363
Operating expenses
— corporate operating expenses (1,719} (1,839
- subsidiary spin-out operating expenses (1,196) 2,119
- amortisation of intangible assets 14 (1,995) (1,998)
6 (4,910) (5,956)
Results from operating activities 6 984 (1,593)
Finance income 10 118 55
Finance expenses 10 (56) (62)
Profit/{Loss) before taxation 1,046 (1,600)
Taxabion 11 - -
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 1,046 (1,600}
Attrnibutable to
- owners of the parent 1,370 {789)
— non-controlling interests 20 (324) (811)
1,046 {1,600)
Basic and fully diluted profit/(loss) per share 12 253p (157)p
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 July 2011

2011 2010

Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 16 58
Intangible assets 14 11,442 13,507
Investments 15 16,768 10,788
Total non-current assets 28,226 24,353
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 613 402
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,962 4,610
Total current assets 2,575 5,012
Total assets 30,801 29,365
Equity
Called up share capital 18 542 542
Capital reserve 19 2 2
Share premium 18 39,034 39,034
Capital redemption reserve 19 1 1
Retained earnings (12,347) (13,853)
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 27232 25,726
Non-controtling interests 20 - -
Total equity 27,232 25,726
Non-current habilities
Other payables 21 - 85
Amounts owed to related parties 21 3,188 3,219
Total non-current liabilities 3,189 3,304
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 22 380 335
Total habilities 3,569 3,639
Total equity and habthties 30,801 29,365

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 QOctober 2011 and were signed on its behalf by
the Chairman

Liversidge C
Chairman
Fusion IP plc — registered number 5275732
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 July 2011

2011 2010

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating actwities
Profit/(Loss} for the pertod 1,046 (1,600)
Adjustments for
- depreciation of property, plant and equipment 26 177
- amortisation of intangible assets 1,995 1,998
- net finance (income)/costs (62) 7
- share-based payments 35 57
- dwidend income (36) (91}
- gain on disposal of subsidianes (1,679) (545)
- change n farr value of investments (3,204) {2,590)
Changes \n working capital
- (increase)/decrease In trade and other recevables (211) 101
— increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 45 (341}

(2,045) (2,827)
Interest paid - -
Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,045) (2,827)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3 (72)
Proceeds frorn sale of property, plant and equipment - 34
Purchase of investments (957) {1,515)
Third party investment into subsichary spin-out companies 205 853
Purchase of intangible assets - (31)
Dwidend income 36 91
Interest receved 118 55
Net cash flows used in investing activities (603) (585)
Cash flows from financing actvities
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 3,150
Share 1ssue costs - (161}
Net cash flows from financing activities - 2,989
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,648) (423}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 4,610 5,033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the pertod 1,962 4,610
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 July 2011

Attributable to equity holders of the Group

Share Other Retained MNon-controlling
capital  Share premium reserves earnings Total nterests Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 August 2009 422 36,052 3 (12,936} 23,541 139 23,680
Loss and total
comprehensive toss for
the year - - - {789} (789) (811) (1,600)
Non-controlling interest
attnbutabte o the Group - - - (185} (185) 185 -
Issue of share capital 120 2,982 - - 3,102 - 3,102
Share-based payments - - - 57 57 - 57
Disposal of subsidianes - - - - - 487 487
At 31 July 2010 542 39,034 3 {13,853} 25,726 - 25,726
Profit and total
comprehensive profit for
the year - - - 1,370 1,370 (324) 1,046
Non-controling interest
attnibutable to the Group - - - 100 100 {100} -
Share-based payments - - - 36 36 - 36
Dispaosal of subsidiaries - - - - - 424 424
At 31 July 2011 542 39,034 3 (12,347) 27,232 - 27,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2011

1 General information

Fusion IP plc 15 a public mited company which 1s listed on AIM, part of the London Stock Exchange, and 1s incorporated and
domiciled in the UK The address of its registered office 1s The Sheffield Bioincubator, 40 Leavygreave Road, Sheffield S3 7RD
The registered number of the Company 1s 5275732

These consohdated financial statements are presented in Sterling which 1s also the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The pnintipal accounting policies apphied in the preparation of these consohdated financial statements are set out below

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements comprise a consolidation of amounts included in the financial statements of the
following companies

Principal Class of
actvity Holding shares held
Fusion IP Sheffield Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
Fusion IP Cardiff Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
Biofusion Licensing (Sheffield) Limited™ Dormant 100% Ordinary
Mantelum Limited* Dormant 100% Ordinary '
Absynth Biologics Limited* MRSA vaccines 52% Ordinary
BioHydrogen Limited* Dormant 60% Crdinary
Medella Therapeutics Lirmited* Cancer
therapeutics 60% Ordinary
Phase Focus Limited*! Lensless
MmICroscopy 53% Ordinary
Diwrnal Limited*! Hormone
replacement 52% Ordinary
Lifestyle Choices Limited* Dormant 51% QOrdinary

* Indirectly held *! Deconsolidated when holdings dropped below 50% in July 2011 (Phase Focus} and November 2010 (Ehurnal)
All companies are incorporated in England and Wales

The consolidated financial statements of Fusion P plc have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the EU The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP and these are presented on pages 41 to 43

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, as required by |AS 39 “Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement”

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain criticat accounting estimates It also :
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas involving a

higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significani to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 4
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Change in accounting policies

IFRS and IFRIC are 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the 1ASB) and must be adopted into European
Union law, referred to as endorsement, before they become mandatory under the IAS Regulation

The following IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments have been adopted in the financial statements for the first time in
thuis financial pertod

(3 IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
This interpretation 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 201G Thts has not had a matenal impact on the
Group as It has not had any *debt for equity swaps’

(1) IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’
This was amended in June 2009 and 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 The Group has
adopted the amendments, which impact on subsidiary companies but net the Group and has no iImpact on consolidation

(1} 1AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation'
This was amended in 2009 relating to classification of nights 1ssues The changes were effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 February 2010 This did not have an impact on the Group as it has not carred out a rights issue

(v} I1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ {revised 2011)
This became effective frem 1 January 2011 and the Group has accordingly given greater detail in disclosures i note 24 about
Related Party Transactions concerning transactions involving the Group and other related parties — such as its university partners

Amendments resulting from April 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs - the following amendments are effective from 1 January
2010 but had no significant impact on the Group

(1} IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’
(n} IFRS 8 ‘“Operating Segments'

(n} IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

(v} IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’

(V) IAS 17 ‘Leases’

{v1) 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

(vn) IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’

{vin} IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments recognition and measurement’

Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual Improvements to IFRSs - the following amendments are effective from 1 July 2010,
but had no significant impact on the Group

0) IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’

(1) IAS 27 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Amendments resulting from May 2010 Annua! Impravements to IFRSs — the following amendments are effective from
1 January 2011, but are not likely to have a significant impact on the Group

() IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’

(n) IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’

{m} IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’

(v} IFRIC 13 (amendment) ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’

() IFRIC 14 {amendment) ‘The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset’

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in 1ssue and endorsed by
the EU but not yet effective None are expected to have a significant impact on the Group

(1) IAS 27 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’ {revised 2011) ‘Separate Financial Statements’ — effective 1 January 2013

Going concern

The Group’s business, together with the factors likely to affect sts future development, performance and financial position are set
out In the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 3 to 6 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, and its hquidity position
are descnbed in the Financial Review on pages 7 to 8

The Directors prepare and review financial forecasts and other information on a regular basis These forecasts include a number
of scenarios relating to cash exits, raising additrona! funding or scaling back expenditure to preserve cash balances

The Group has cash balances as at 31 July 2011 of £1,962,000 although this 1s not sufficient to fund all the planned levels of
investment and expenditure for the next 12 months

However, the Directors believe there 1s a reasonable likelihood that the Group will achieve cash exits durning the next year and
that these exits will generate sufficient cash for the Group to continue In operaticnal existence at planned investment levels for
the foreseeable future

Further, the Directors belteve that,  these exits are not achieved, it will be possible to raise additional funds from current
investors, a number of whom have indicated a willingness to support the Group Again this will allow the Group to continue In
operational existence at planned investment levels

In addition, the Directors have prepared a forecast that demonstrates, in the absence of an exit or fund raising, the Group could
alter its planned expenditure and investment plans sufficiently to ensure It has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence albeit at reduced investment and expenditure levels

For these reasons, the Directors have concluded that the Group has adequate working capital and cash balances to operate for
the foreseeable future and it I1s appropniate to use the going concern basis of preparation for these financial statements

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The Group’s consolidated financial statements consist of Fusion [P plc and all of its subsidianes The consolidated financial
statements exclude intra-group transactions

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group ebtains control and continues
through to the date control ceases Control consists of the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order
to obtain benefit from its activities, usually by holding more than 50% of the voling rights or by way of contractual agreement
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The cost of acquisition 1s measured at fair value of assets given, equity instruments i1ssued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange Costs directly attnbutable to the transaction are expensed as incurred The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the far value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 1s recorded

as goodwill If the cost of acquisition 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income

Upon the loss of contral, the Group derecogmises the assets and hatilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and
other components of equity related to the subsidiary Any surplus or deficit ansing on the loss of control 1s recogrised in the
statement of comprehenstve income If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsiciary, then such interest 1s measured
at fair value at the date that control is lost Subsequently it 1s accounted for as a spin-out investment as detalled below

Spin-out investmernts

Spin-out investments are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally accompanied by '
a shareholding of less than 50% of the equity or voting rights Spin-out investmenis that are held by the Group with a view to !
the ulimate reahsation of capital gains are accounted for in accordance with |AS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and .
Measurement” and upon initial recognition are designated at fair value through profit or loss This treatment 1s permitted by IAS

28, in which investments held by entities which are akin to venture capitalist organisations can be excluded from its scope

Dilution gains and losses ansing In spin-out investments are recognised In the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Dividends received from spin-out investments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the penod 1N which
they are received

Loan investments

Loan investments are generally unquoted loan instruments which are convertible to equity at a future point in ttme Such
instruments are considered to be hybnd instruments containing a fixed rate of debt host contract with an embedded equity
derivative The Group designates the entire hybnd contract at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income
on inibal recogrution and accordingly, the embedded derivative 15 not separated from the hast contract and accounted for
separately The farr value of loan instruments 1s established by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows
associated with the instrument

Transactions with mnority shareholders — “econormic entify approach”

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group
For purchases from non-contrelling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired

of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 1s deducted from equity Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded n equity For disposals to non-controlling interests, differences between any proceeds received and
the relevant share of non-controlling interests are also recorded In equity

Operating segments

An operating segment 1s a group of assets and operations which are identified on the basis of internal reports that are regularly
reviewed by the Board, which analyse the Group in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its ongoing performance

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in fareign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and liabibties denominated in foresgn currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to Sterling at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recogrised in the statement of
comprehensive Income
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued
for the year ended 31 July 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting polictes continued
Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment 1s shown at cost less deprecration and imparment Depreciation 1s provided to wnite off the
cost, less the estimated residual value, by equal instalments over the estimated usefuf economic lives as follows

Computer equipment - 4 years
Office/labaratory equipment - 3toSyears
Demonstration prototypes - 2 to 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recogrised within the
statement of comprehensive income

Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, representing the excess farr value of the consideration given over
the farr value of the identifiable assets, lizbilities and contingent abilities acquired Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment
and s carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill in respect of acquisitions prior to 1 August 2006 1s included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents the
amount recorded under UK GAAP

IP rights

IP rights compnse [P, patents and licences purchased by the Group together with the IP pipelines with Cardiff University and
the University of Sheffield The Group’s view 1s that these assets have a finite ife of ten years and to that extent they should be
amertised over therr respective unexpired penods with provision made for any impairment when required IP rights are tested
annually for impairment and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Impairment of intangible assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for impairment annually as a matter of policy An impairment loss 1s recognised
for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value In use For the purposes of assessing impairments, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash flows (cash-generating units {CGUSs))

Research and development expenditure
Expenciture on research activities 1s recognised In the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred

Expenditure on development activities 1s capitalised if the product or process 1s technically and commercially feasible and the
Group intends to, and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to, complete development and if the Group can measure
reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development The expenditure capitahsed includes the
cost of materials, direct labour and an approprtate proportion of overheads Other development expenditure 1s recognised in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome as an expense as incurred

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the categonies hsted below, depending on the purpose for which the asset
was acquired None of the Group’s assets are categorised as held to matunty or availlable for sale

In respect of regular purchases and sales, these are recogrused on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchasing or selling the asset Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership

26




Fusion IP ple Annual Report and Accounis 2011

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Spin-out nvestments and associated loans that are held by the Group with a view to the ultimate realisation of capital gains are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss Realised and unrealised gams on financial assets at faw value
through profit or loss are included in the statement of comprehensive income 1n the period they arise

Price of recent investment

The fair value of uniisted secunities 1s established using IPEVCY guidelines The valuation methodology used most commonly by
the Group 1s the “price of recent investment” The following considerations are used when calculating the farr value using the
price of recent investment guidance

* where the investment being valued was riself made recently, tts cost will generally provide a good indication of fair value,

* where there has been any recent investment by third parties, the price of that investment will provide a basis for the
valuation, and

* where a far value cannot be estmated reliably the investment is reported at cost unless there 1s evidence that the investment
has since been impaired

Other valuation techmgues

Where spin-out investments are trading profitably and cash generative there 15 usually no readily ascertainable value from
following the “price: of recent nvestment” methodelogy In these circumstances the Group considers alternative methodologies
in the IPEVCV guidelines, such as discounted cash flows (*DCF") or price-earnings multiples DCF involves estimating the fair
value of business by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows, based on the most recent forecasts in respect
of the underlying business

When using the earnings multiple methodology, earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") are generally used, adjusted to a
maintainable level A suitable earnings multiple 15 derived from an equivalent business or group of businesses, for which the
average price-earrungs multiple for the relevant sector index can generally be considered a suitable proxy This multiple 1s
applied to earnings to derive an enterprise value which 1 then discounted to reflect non-marketability and other nsks inherent to
businesses in early stages of operation

Other receivables

Other recewvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They are included in current assets and compnse “trade and other recewvables” and “cash and cash equwvalents” They
are carried at cost less any provision for impairment

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits with an original maturity of three months or less

Payments on account

Payments on account are recorded within trade and other recevables and represent the transfer of funds In advance to the
University of Sheffield held on the balance sheet of Fusion 1P Sheffield Limited The payments on account are held at cost, less
any amounts transferred to investments on account of the acquisition of interests in spin-out compantes or the transfer of IP
from the University of Sheffield

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are comprised of trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are recognised
at amortised cost Unless otherwise indicated, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial habilities are a reasonable
approximation of therr far value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contnued
for the year ended 31 July 2011

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Non-current Liabilities owed to related parties

Nen-current habilities owed to related parties relate to loan notes and accrued interest due to the University of Sheffield and
Cardiff University ansing from the purchase of the Group’s interest in its portfolio of spin-out companies These amounts

are repayable on the earlier of the sale by Fusion IP of the underlying share capital in the Company, or the Company making
dwidend payments, or ten years from the day of issue should the spin-out company generate a return These amounts are only
payable to the extent that any gam or dividend is received by Fusion P, and can be cancelled by Fusion IP by the return of the
shares to which they relate to the University of Sheffield or Cardiff University respectively They are recognised at amoriised cost
which Is a reasonable approximation of fair vatue

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight ine basis over the penod of
the lease

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax Current tax and deferred tax 1s recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to a business combmation, or items recogrised directly In equity or In
other comprehensive income

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable or recevable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years Current tax payable
also includes any tax hability ansing from the declaration of dividends

Deferred tax 15 recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habiities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax 1s not recogrused for

» temporary differences on the inibal recognition of assets or iabilities in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it 1s probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

* taxable temporary differences ansing on the initial recognition of goodwill

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset If there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax labilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authonty on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entittes, but they
intend to settle current tax habilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

A deferred tax asset 15 recogrised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it 1s
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be utiised Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Employee benefits

Pension obhigatrons

The Group does not cperate any pension schemes for employees but makes contributions to employee personal pension
schemes on an individual basis The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid The
contnibutions are recogrised as employee benefit expenses when they are due
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Share-based payments

Share-based incentive arrangements are provided to Directors and certain employees Share options granted are valued at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes oplion pricing model and are expensed on a straight hine basis over the vesting penod to
operating profit

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises

« fees for vanious advisory and fund management services which are recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income
when the related services are performed and when considered recoverable, and

* licence fees which are recognised in full upon signing once all the Group's obiigations have been completed, 1n accordance
with the substance of the agreement

Corporate operating expenses

Corporate operating expenses reflect the costs associated with running the central functions of the Group The costs are
contained withun the Parent Company, Fusion IP ple and the two wholly owned subsidiaries, Fusion IP Sheffield Limited and
Fusion IP Cardiff Limited

Subsidiary spin-out operating expenses

Subsidiary spin-out operating expenses reflect the costs associated with running the early stage spin-out companies in the
period from when they are first incorporated through tc when they have completed third-party venture capital funding which
then dilutes the Group's holding below 50% of the equity or voting rights At this stage the spin-out company 1s then de-
consolidated and accounted for as a financial asset at held farr value

3 Financial nsk management

In the normal course of business, the Group uses certain financral instruments including cash, equity ivestments and loans to
its portfolio of spin-out companies Loans to spin-out comparies are treated on the same basis as equity for valuation purposes

Risk management objectives

The Group 1s exposed to a number of nisks through the performance of its normal operations The most significant are iquidity
and market price nsk Income from surplus funds 1s dependent on market interest rates

The Group’s main objective N using financial instruments 1s to promote the commercialisation of IP held by technology
businesses through the raising and investing of funds for this purpese The Group's policies in calculating the nature, amount
and timing of investments are determined by planned future investment activity

Due io the nature of the Group’s actmbies, the Directors do not consider it necessary to use derwvative financial Instruments to
hedge the Group's exposure to fluctuations 10 interest rates, as these exposures have not been significant during the period
covered by this report

Interest rate risk profile of financial habilities

The Group's trade and other payables consist of short-term payables, therefore disclosures have been excluded The amounts
owed to related parties falling due after more than one year generally relates to loan noles and accrued interest due to the
University of Sheffield and Cardiff University anising from the purchase of the Group’s interest in its partfolio of spin-out
companies These amounts are interest beaning at a rate which tracks the London Interbank Offered Rate {LIBOR)

Borrowing facilities
The Group had no undrawn committed borrowing faciibies avallable during the period

Currency exposures

The Group occasionally enters into transactions in currencies other than Stering Any exposure to fluctuations in market
currency exchange rates 1s considered immatenal from a Group perspective Therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared
in relabion to this risk

29




Fusion IP pic Annual Report and Accounts 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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3 Financial nsk management continued
Interest rate nsk

The Group has directly mamtamed special interest beanng accounts with corporate banks at variable rates of interest related to
LIBOR These deposits are made on a daily basis with minimal balances held on current account Fixed rate deposits for periods
of up to three months are placed with corporate banks where surplus funds in excess of £1m exist and interest rates above
LIBOR are available

The Group's cash and cash deposits as at 31 July 2011 amounted to £1,962,000 (2010 £4,610,000)

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage financral risk, and n particular iquidity risk, ensuring that sufficient hquidity 1s available to meet
foreseeable requirements and to invest surplus cash in low nsk instruments with reputable institutions

Market price nisk

The Group 1s exposed to risk in respect of equity investments and loans to spin-out companies The Group seeks to mitigate this
nisk by routinely monitoring the performance of the spin-out companies The Group uses a ngorous investment appraisal process
prior to deciding on investment Regular spin-out company updates are provided to the Board on the status and valuation

of investments Most spin-out companies also have a Fusion IP plc Executive Director on therr board who closely monitors

the performance of the company against strategic milestones The value of early stage technology and life science spin-out
companigs 1s affected by the ability to attract strategic industrial partners and venture capital institutions to invest in follow-on
funding rounds, which is ultimately determined by the general economic environment and the performance of the international
equity markets

Capital management

The capital structure of the group 1s a mixture of cash balances and eguity comprnising 1ssued share capital and reserves as
detaled in note 18 The Group’s ebjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
cencern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The Group does not currently utilise debt within its capital structure  Addibonal cash and cash equivalents for operating and
investment requirements are generated through the 1ssue of new shares when required

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are set out in note 2, the Directors have made certan
Judgements that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements The Group makes estimates
and assumptions cancerning the future The resulting accounting estnates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and labilities within the next financial year are described below

Valuation of unquoted equity tnvestments

The judgements required ta determine the appropriate valuation methodology of unquoted equity nvestments means there Is a
risk of material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labiibes These judgements include a decision whether or not
to impar valuations

Valuations of unquoted equity investments are based on the last external funding round where one has taken place, otherwise
at cost, less any provision for umpamrment if the most recent external funding round establishes a valuaton lower than the cost to
the Group

Where unguoted equity investments are trading profitably and cash generative they will be valued using either DCF or price-
earnings multiples, which will be discounted to reflect non-marketability and other risks inherent to businesses in early stages
of operatien The estimates included in these valuations are described In the accounting palicy for financial assets at farr value
through profit or loss These valuations will be reviewed on a regular basis based on the trading performance of the companies
and decisions on whether to increase or impar the carrying value will be reviewed by the Directors
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Valuation of intangible IP nghts

It 1s Group policy to test, at least annually, whether the IP rights have suffered any impairment There are a number of variable
assumptions set out in note 14 The Directors consider that for each of these variables there 1s a wide range of reasonably
possible alternative values, which result in a wide range of fair value estimates for the IP nghts agreement None of these
estimates of fair value i1s considered more appropriate or relevant than any other As a result of this, the Directors’ view 1s that the
IP nights should be amortised over the ten-year life of the agreement with provision made for any impairment when required

Subsidianies and spin-out investments

At the point of investing in a new spin-cut company the Directors consider the definiions of a subsidiary and a spin-out
mvestment as set out In note 2 The judgements over control of the company are assessed through

» proportion of voting rights held,

* power to govern pechcies of the entity, and

* power to appoint a majonty of board members

5 Operating segments

For the year ended 31 July 2011 and the year ended 31 July 2010 the Group's revenue and profit or loss was derived from its
principal actvity wihich encompasses techrology transfer, company incubation and early stage venture capital The Group’s Board,
which I1s considered to be the Group's chief operating decision maker, have undertaken a review of the Group’s operations and its
associated business risks and consider the performance of the business as one reportable segment The portfolio of investments
15 reviewed wath no differentiabion made based on the market sector of the company or whether the company originated from the
Sheffield or Cardiff IP pipeline No distinction Is made between the assessment of subsidianies and spin-out companies

The principal activity of the Group ts based solely within the UK hence no geographical analysis 1s presented

The disclosures for the reportable segment 1s therefore given by the primary financial statements and related notes There are
no material differences between the segment information as presented to the chief operating decision maker, and the financial
information 15 presented under IFRS as adopted by the EU

6 Results from operating activities

Results from operating activities have been arrived at after chargingf(crediting) the following operating expenses

2011 2010

£000 £000
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 26 177
Profit on dispusal of property, plant and equipment - (19}
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,995 1,998
Employee costs (see note 8) 1,139 1,349
Operating leases -~ property 50 63
Payments to the University of Sheffield/Cardiff University for IP mirung 313 249
Research, development and patent costs 452 1,039
Cost of raw matenals and consumables 39 -
Legal, professional, insurance and advisory costs 546 726
Administration and marketing costs 350 374

4,510 5,856
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continved

for the year ended 31 July 2011

7 Auditors’ remuneration

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditors

2011 2010
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 18 19
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiary spin-cut companies 4 7
8 Employee costs
2011 2010
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 926 1,095
Social secunity costs 114 132
Pension costs — contnbutions to money purchase plans 64 65
Share-based payments 35 57
1,139 1,348
Average monthly number of persons (including Directars) employed
2011 2010
Number Number
Central corporate functions 13 14
Subsidiary spin-out companies 3 5
16 19

9 Share-based payments

No share options or share warrants were exercised during the pericd During the year no new share warrants or options were 1ssued

Details of the share options held by Directors are set out within the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration

The farr value of any outstanding share-based options and warrants are recogmised as an expense through the profit and loss
account over the relevant vesting periods The charge in the current year was £35,000 {2010 £57,000)

The fair values are determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the assumptions used at the fair value

measurement date are shown n the table below

Employees  Employees  Employees Directors Directors
Farr value at grant date 47 24p 15 65p 14 43p 47 24p 1565p
Share price at grant 150 00p 33 50p 33 50p 150 00p 33 50p
Dividend yield 0 00% 000% 000% 000% 000%
Expected volatiity 18 52% 42 20% 42 17% 18 52% 42 20%
Term to matunty 55 years 5 5years 4 5 years 55 years 5 5 years
Risk free interest rate 4 46% 300% 3 00% 4 46% 300%
Number of shares under option 33,333 50,000 400,000 99,999 150,600

The expected volatiity was benchmarked against the FTSE AIM All Share Index on those options 1ssued on 31 July 2010 and
for the previous options against an index of similar companies in the Biotech Index as no histonc data was avaiable for the

Company at the grant date
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10 Finance income and costs

2011 2010
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest iIncome on short-term bank deposits i8 19
Interest income on loans to spin-out iINnvestments 100 36
118 55
Finance expenses
tnterest payable on loans from related parties (56) (62)
(56) (62)
Net finance income/{costs} 62 (7)
11 Taxation
2011 2010
£000 £000

Current tax - _
Deferred tax _ _

Deferred tax assels of £3,055,628 (2010 £1,855,000) from unutiised tax losses have not been recogmised as the Directors consider
there to be sufficient uncertainty over the availability of future taxable profits from which the trading losses can be deducted

The Directors believe that the Group will qualify for the Substantial Shareholder Exemption (SSE) and therefore no deferred tax 1s
provided for in respect of the fair value uphfts in valuation of certain of the equity investments

Corparation tax 1s calculated at a pro-rata of 20% and 21% (2010 21%) of the estimated assessable profit for the period On
the 1 Apnl 2011, the Small Profits Rate of corporation tax was reduced from 21% to 20% The calculations in the accounts are
based on a pro-rata application of these rates across the financial year

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) per the income statement as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000
Profit/{L.oss) before tax 1,045 {1,600)
Current tax pro-rated across the year at 20% and 21% 216 (336)
Effects of
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes (199) 150
- depreciation in excess of capital allowances 27 24
- UK research and development tax credits (44) (38)
— adjustments in respect of prior years - 1
- tax losses carned/{brought) forward - 199

Total current charge - -

33




Fusion IP plc Annual Report and Accounts 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

for the year ended 31 July 2011

12 Earnings per share

2011 2010
Profit{Loss) attributable to the equity holders of the parent £1,370,000 (£789,000)
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue 54,242 850 50,213,222
Basic and fully diluted profit/loss) per share 253p (157

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

Diluted earrungs per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares according to 1AS 33 Dilutive potential Ordinary shares include granted
share options and warrants where the exercise price 1s less than the average market price of the Company's Ordinary shares

during the year

IAS 33 requires presentation of diluted earmings per share when a company could be called upon to 1ssue shares that would
decrease net profit or increase net loss per share Only options or warrants that are “in the money” are treated as dilutive and
net loss per share would not be increased by the exercise of such options or warrants Therefore no adjustment has been made

to dilute profit/(loss) per share for any outstanding shares, options or warrants

13 Property, plant and equipment

Office and Prototypes and
computer laboratory
equipment equipment Total

£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 August 2010 81 251 332
Additions 4 1 5
Disposals &) (252) (258)
At 31 July 2011 79 - 79
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2010 (52) {222) {274}
Charge for the year (15) (11) 26}
Disposals 4 233 237
At 31 July 2011 (63) — (63}
Net book value
At 31 July 2011 16 - 16
Cost
At 1 August 2009 85 394 479
Additions 15 57 72
Disposals (19) {200 {219)
At 31 July 2010 81 251 332
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 August 2009 (55) (173) (228)
Charge for the year (16) (161) (177)
Disposals 19 112 131
At 31 July 2010 (52) (222} (274)
Net book value
At 31 July 2010 29 29 58
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14 Intangible assets

IP nights and
patents/licences Goodwill Total

£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 August 2010 19,978 13 19,991
Disposals (85) (13) (98)
At 31 July 2011 19,893 - 19,893
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2010 (6,484) - (6,484)
Amortisation charge (1,995) - (1,995)
Disposals 28 - 28
At 31 July 2011 (8,451) - (8,451)
Net book value
At 31 July 2011 11,442 - 11,442
Cost
At 1 August 2009 19,984 65 20,049
Additions 31 - 31
Disposals (37) (52} {89)
At 31 July 2010 19,978 13 19,991
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 August 2009 (4,523) (52) (4,575}
Amortisation charge (1,998) - (1,898)
Disposals 37 B2 89
At 31 July 2010 (6,484) - (6,484)
Net book value
At 31 July 2010 13,494 13 13,507

Recoverable amount of the University of Sheffield and Cardiff University IP pipeline nights
The following key variables are relevant in determining a recoverable amount for the IP pipeline rights

* the timing and number of spin-out companies from both universities,
» dilution of percentage shareholding rates as a result of inancing related spin-out companies in the future,
* disposal values and timings, and

¢ discount factars of 6-8% (2010 6-8%)

Each year the Directors review the IP pipeline nghts for any evidence of impairment This review 1s based on a discounted cash
flow maodel which locks at historic information based on the key vanables noted above and projects forwards over the remaining
Iife of the IP pipeline rights and through to the exit of the spin-out comparnies Based on the review this year, the Directors
believe that there 1s no mpairment of the IP rights and that the most appropriate treatment 1s for the IP rights to be amortised
over the ten-year Ife of the agreement with provision made for any impairment when required, consistent with the treatment in
the prior year The carrying value of the Cardiff University IP rights amounted to £8,681,000 (2010 £10,275,000) The carrying
value of the University of Sheffield IP rights amounted to £2,739,000 (2010 £3,130,000}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

for the year ended 31 July 2011

15 Investments

Spin-out
companies Loans Total

£000 £000 £000
Fair value
At 1 August 2010 9,675 1,113 10,788
Additions 592 1,002 1,594
Transfers 1,182 - 1,182
Change In fair value in the year 3,604 (400) 3,204
At 31 July 2011 15,053 1,715 16,768
Change n fair value in the year
Fair valug gains 3,983 - 3,983
Fair value losses (379) {400) (779)

3,604 {400) 3,204
Fair value
At 1 August 2009 4,990 1,407 6,397
Additions 1,022 779 1,801
Transfers 62 {62) -
Change n fair value in the year 3,601 (1,011 2,590
At 31 July 2010 9,675 1,113 10,788
Change n fair value in the year
Fair value gains 3,671 - 3671
Fair value losses {(70) (1,011) (1,081)

3,601 {1,011) 2,590

The total fair value of investments of £16,768,000 (2010 £10,788,000) has been determined using two valuation methods

» Level 1 —inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets - £12,802,000 (2010 £8,806,000)
* |evel 2 - Inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data - £3,966,000 (2010 £1,982,000)

Durning the year, the disposal of subsidiary undertakings, whereby the Group's holdings i Diurnal Luvuted and Phase Focus
Limited dropped below 50% following third party funding rounds, resulted in a gain of £1,679,000 (2010 £545,000 gain)
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At 31 July 2011, the Group had investments where it holds 20% or more of the 1ssued share capital as follows

Principal Class of
activity Holding shares held
Phase Focus Limited Lensless microscopy 49% Ordinary
Magnomatics Limited Magnetic devices 48% Ordinary
Seren Photonics Limited High brightness LEDs 48% Ordinary
Progenteq Limited Cartilage replacement therapies 48% Ordinary
Demasq Limited Bone and soft tissue imaging products 48% Ordinary
Mesuro Limited Radio frequency design and test instrumentation 47% QOrdinary
Asalus Medical Instruments Limited Medical devices 45% Ordinary
Diurnal Limited Hormene replacement 43% Ordinary
lterate Control Limited Advance control testing software 40% Ordinary
Astenion Limited Cytokine therapies 38% Ordinary
Medaphor Limited Medical training solutions 38% Ordinary
Aduvantix Limited Vaccine adjuvants 35% Ordinary
Perlemax Limited Industnal gas processes 35% Ordinary
Art of Xen Limited Medrcal use of xenon gas 32% Crdinary
120 Research Limited Pesticide testing 31% Crdinary
Abcellute Limited Cell stabihsing technology 29% Ordinary
Simcyp Limited Drug metabolism 21% Ordinary
At 31 July 2011, the Group had investments where it holds 20% or less of the 1ssued share capital as follows
Principal Class of
activity Halding shares held
Muscagen Limited Drug discovery 13% Ordinary
Morvus Technology Limited Oncology therapies 10% Ordinary
Bitecic Limited Clinuical research and support 10% Ordinary
Zilico Limited Cervical cancer detection 6% Ordinary
Regenerative Medicine Assets Limited Regenerative medicine 4% Ordinary
Q Chip Limited Life science and therapeutic products 2% Qrdinary

All companies are incorporated in England and Wales
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements conunued
for the year ended 31 July 2011

16 Trade and other receivables

2011 2010

£000 £000

Trade recervables 44 9
Amounts due from related parties 268 26
Other tax and social secunty g 24
Payments on account 241 278
Prepayments and accrued income 51 65
613 402

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates therr farr value

The amounts due from related parties are detailed in note 24

Paymentis on account represent the transfer of funds in advance to the University of Sheiffield, details of which are set gut in the
accounting policy for “payments on account”

Credit nisk

The Directors believe that given the majonty of trade and other recewvables are with related parties (primarily public sector
organisations) there 1s little nisk to credit quality

Ageing of trade receivables

No trade receivables are past their due date and no impairment prowvision was considered necessary in the current or
preceeding years

17 Cash and cash equivalents

2011 2010

£000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,962 4,610
1,962 4,610

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an originai matunty of three
months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates their farr value

18 Share capital and premium

2011 2010
£000 £000

Allotted, calted up and fully paid
54 242 850 (2010 54,242,850) Ordinary shares of 1p each 542 542
Share premium 39,034 39,034

The Company has one class of Ordinary shares which carry equal voting rnights, equal rights to income and distnibution of assets
on hquidation or otherwise and no nght to fixed income

19 Other reserves

The other reserves totalling £3,000 (2010 £3,000) comprise a capital redemption reserve of £1,000 (2010 £1,000) and a
capital reserve of £2,000 {2010 £2,000) ansing from the Company’s admission to AIM in 2005 and the resulting differences
on conschdation under merger accounting
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20 Non-controlling interests

2011 2010

£000 £000

At 1 August - 139
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings 424 487
Share of profit/(loss) in year (324) (811)
Non-centrolling interests attnbutable to Group (100) 185
At 31 July - -

The disposal of subsidiary undertakings reflects the change of the Group’s holdings in Phase Focus Limited and Diurnal Limited
following investment momies recewved from funding rounds involving third parties

21 Non-current habilities

2011 2010

£000 £000

Other payables — 85
Amceunts owed to University of Sheffield 731 713
Amounts owed to Cardiff University 1,485 1,449
Amounts owed to Sheffield University Enterprises Limited - 84
Deferred consideration owed to University of Sheffield 973 973
Amounts owed to related parties 3,189 3,219
3,189 3,304

The amount owed to the University of Sheffield and Cardiff University relate to loan notes and accrued interest due anising from
the purchase of the Group's interest in its portfoko of spin-out companies These amounts are repayable on the earlier of the sale
by Fusion {P of the underlying share capital in the company, or the company making dividend payments, or ten years from the day
of 1Issue These amounts are only payable to the extent that any gain or dividend 1s received by Fusion [P and can be cancelled by
Fusion [P by the return of the shares to which they relate to the University of Sheffield or Cardiff University respectively

The deferred consideration owed to the University of Sheffield retates to the expanded Sheffield Agreement and represents
785,609 Ordinary shares (2010 785,608 Ordinary shares) which will be 1ssued to the University of Sheffield The Ordinary
shares will only be 1ssued once additional Ordinary shares are 1ssued and enly to the extent that the holding of the University
of Sheffield in the Company does not exceed 29 9% of the 1ssued share capital

The amounts owed to Sheffield University Enterpnses Limited related to a loan and accrued interest repayable by the former
subsidiary undertaking, Diurna!l Limited

Maturity analysis
Due to the repayment terms described above, the date of matunity of these loans i1s uncertain

Other payables represented preference shares 1ssued by the former subsidiary undertaking, Diurnal Limited to third party investors

22. Trade and other payables

2011 2010

£000 £000

Trade creditors 105 108
Other creditors 31 -
Qther tax and social secunity 2 40
Accruals and deferred income 242 187
380 335
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 July 2011

23 Operating lease commitments

2011 2010
£000 £000

Minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases on property expiring
- no later than one year 17 10
— later than one year and no later than five years - 30
17 40

The lease payments represent amounts payable by the Group for its offices, accommodation and laboratory requirements in the UK

24 Related party transactions

Dunng the year, the Group purchased administrative and other services from Sheffietd Uriversity Enterprises Limited (SUEL),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Umiversity of Sheffield, totalling £49,326 (2010 £59,317) At 31 July 2011 the balance due to
SUEL was £1,446 (2010 £rul}

Fusion P Sheffield Limited purchased IP from the University of Sheffield duning the year with a total value of £nil (2010 £31,797)
These payments were taken against payments on account

Under the terms of the agreement dated January 2007 Fusion IP Cardiff Limited paid Cardiff University £210,000

(2010 £210,000) as payments to support the management of the IP pipetine At 31 July 2011 the balance due to Cardiff
University was £nil (2010 £n1l)

Under the terms of the agreement dated January 2009 Fusion IP Sheffield Limited paid Sheffield University £78,750 (2010 £nil}

During the year, Fusion IP has continued to accrue interest due on loans in respect of the purchase of the onginal portfolio
companies from both the University of Sheffield and Cardiff University The total amounts due are set cut 1n note 21

During the year, fusion IP supplied management services to comparues in which it held a participating interest totaling
£451,554 (2010 £180,440) At 31 July 2011 the amount owed to Fusion IP was £66,207 (2010 £26,087)

Dunng the year, companies 1n which Fusion IP held a participating interest contracted for £441,575 (2010 £380,323) of
research services combined from the University of Sheffield and Cardiff Unuiversity At 31 July 2011 the combined amount owed
to the unwersities for these contracted research services was £88,402 (2010 £190,334)

During the year, IP Group invested £495,207 (2010 £147,350) in companies in which Fusion IP held a participating interest
During the year, directors of Fusion IP invested £19,821 (2010 £5,000) i comparues in which Fusion IP held a parbcipating interest
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 July 2011

2011 2010
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 3 11 17
Investments 4 2 2
13 19
Current assets
Debtors 5 40,416 40,410
40,416 40,410
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 (71) (71)
Net current assets 40,345 40,339
Creditors amounts falling due after one year 7 (973) (973)
Net assets 39,385 39,385
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 8 542 542
Share premium 8 39,034 39,034
Capital redemption reserve 8 1 1
Retained deficit 8 (192) {192)
Equity shareholders’ funds 39,385 39,385

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 Qctober 2011 ang were signed on its behalf by

the Chairman

’

M

Doug Liversidge CBE
Chairrman
Fusion IP plc — registered number 5275732
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2011

1 Accounting policies

The Company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with applicable
UK Accounting Standards and the Companies Act 2006 A summary of the Company accounting policies, which have been
consistently applied throughout the year, are set out below

Tangible assets

All tangible assets are shown at cost less depreciation and imparrment Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost, less the
estimated residual value by equal instalments over the estimated useful economic lives as follows

Computer/office equipment - 3to 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are staled at historic cost less any provision for impairment in vaiue

Fixed asset investments
Unlisted investments are held at historic cost less any provision for impairment in value

Loans to subsidiary undertakings

All inter-company loans are initially recognised at cost As all inter-company loans are repayable on demand, therr carrying value
approximates to their far value

Cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 1 “Cash Flow Statements”, which provides that where a company 1s
a member of a group and a consolidated cash flow statement s published, the company does not have to present an individual
cash flow statement

2. Results for the Parent Company

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
presented a profit and loss account for the Parent Company The Parent Company’s result for the year was a profit of £nil
(2010 £nil) after recharges

Details of the auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in note 7 to the consohdated financial statements

Full details of Directars’ remuneration and employee informatien can be found in the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration on
pages 12 to 14

3 Tangible assets

Computer and office equipment

2011 2010

£000 £000
Cost
At 1 August 37 52
Additions 3 4
Disposals - {19}
At 31 July 40 37
Depreciation
At 1 August (20) (29
Charge for year © (10
Disposals - 19
At 31 July (29) (200
Net Book Value 11 17
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4 Investments

2011 2010
£000 £000
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 1 1
Fixed asset investments 1 1
2 2
Details of the subsidiary undertakings at 31 July 2011 are as follows
Principal Class of
actwity Holding shares held
Fuston IP Sheffield Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
Fuston IP Cardiff Limited Holding company 100% Ordinary
All companies are incorporated 1n England and Wales
5 Debtors
2011 2010
£000 £000
Prepayments and accrued income 25 22
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 40,391 40,388
40,416 40,410

Loans to subsidiary undertakings represent amounts advanced to Fusion IP Sheffield Limited and Fusion IP Cardiff Limited in
respect of the IP pipeline agreements with the University of Sheffield and Cardiff University respectively No interest has been
charged on these loans and there 1s no fixed repayment term

6 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year

2011 2010

£000 £000
Accruals and deferred income 71 71
7 Creditors — amounts falling due after one year

2011 2010

£000 £000
Deferred consideration owed to University of Sheffield 973 973

The deferred consideration owed to the University of Sheffield relates to the expanded Sheffield Agreement and represents
785,609 Ordinary shares {2010 785,609 Ordinary shares) which will be issued to the University of Sheffield The Ordinary
shares wili only be issued once additional Ordinary shares are 1ssued and only to the extent that the holding of the University of
Sheffield in the Company does not exceed 29 9% of the 1ssued share capital

8 Share capital and reserves

Capttal
Share Share redemption Retained
capita! premium reserve deficit Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 August 2010 42 39,034 1 (192) 39,385
Issue of share capital - - - - -
At 31 tuly 2011 542 39,034 1 {192) 38,385

Details of the Company's alloted share capital can be found in note 18 to the consohdated financial statements
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Natice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Fuston IP plc (the “Company”) will be held at the offices of Ashurst
LLP, Broadwalk House, 5 Appald Street, London EC2A 2HA on 25 November 2011 at 10 30 a m to consider and, 1f thought fit,
pass the following resolutions 1t 1s intended to propose Resclution 5 as a special resolution and all other resolubions as ordinary
resoluttons Voting on all resofutions will be on a show of hands unless a poll 1s validly demanded

1 To receive the accounts includimg the Report on the Directors’ Remuneration for the financial year ended 31 July 2011,
together with the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon (Resolution 1)

2 Tore-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company (Resolufton 2)
3 To authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditors (Resolution 3)

4 That, in substitution for all previously granted but unutihsed authonties, the Directors be generally and unconditionally
authorised for the purposes of Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 {the “Act”), to exercise all the powers of the Company
to allot shares and grant nghts to subscnbe for, or convert any secunty into, shares

{a) up to an aggregate nominal amount (within the meaning of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £180,809 50 (such
amount to be reduced by the nominal amount allotted or granted under (b) below in excess of such sum), and

(b) comprising equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount {within the
meaning of section 551(3) and (6) of the Act) of £361,619 (such amount to be reduced by any altotments of grants made
under (a) above) in connection with or pursuant to an offer ar Invitation by way of a rnights 1ssue in favour of holders of
ordinary shares i proportion (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by them on the
record date for such allotment (and holders of any other class of equity secunties entitled to participate therein or if the
Directors consider it necessary, as permitted by the nights of those secunities), but subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may consider necessary or approprate to deal with fractional entitlements, treasury shares,
record dates or legal, regulatory or practical difficulties which may anse under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
regulatory body or stock exchange in any ternitory or any other matter whatsoever,

these authonsations to expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (save that the Company
may before such expiry make any offer or agreement that woutd or might require shares to be allotted or nghts to be granted,
after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares, or grant rights to subscribe for or to corwert any secunity into shares in
pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authonsations conferred hereby had not expired) {Resolution 4)

5 That subject to the passing of Resolution 4 set out above, the Directors be given power pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of
the Act to

(a) allot equity secunties (as defined in section 560 of the Act) of the Company for cash pursuant to the authonsations
conferred by Resolution 4,

(b} sell ordinary shares {(as defined in section 560(1) of the Act) held by the Company as treasury shares for cash,

as If section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that this power shall be limited to the
allotment of equity securities for cash and the sale of treasury shares

{1} n connection with or pursuant to an offer or invitation (but In the case of the authonsation granted under Resolution
4(b} above, by way of a nghts 1ssue anly) in favour of holders of ordinary shares in proportion {as nearly as practicable)
to the respective number of ordinary shares held by them on the record date for such allotment or sale (and holders of
any other class of equity secunties entitled to participate therein or if the Directors consider it necessary, as permitied
by the nights of those securities) but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may consider
necessary or appropnate to deal with fractional entitlements, treasury shares, record dates or legal regulatory or
practical difficufties which may anise under the laws of or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange
N any terntory or any other matter whatsoever, and
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(n} n the case of the authonsatron granted under Resolution 4{a} above (or in the case of any transfer of treasury shares),
and otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (1) of this resolution, up to an aggregate nominal amount of £27,121 42,

and shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, save that the Company may before
such expiry make any offer or agreement that would or might require equity securities to be allotted, or treasury shares to be
sold, after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity secunties, or sell treasury shares, in pursuance of any such offer or
agreement as If the power conferred hereby had not expired (Resolution 5)

By order of the Board

Richard Birtles Registered Office
Company Secretary The Sheffield Bioincubator
10 October 2011 40 Leavygreave Road
Registered in England and Wales number 5275732 Sheffield $3 7RD
Notes

1 Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company specifies that in order to have the

right to attend and vole at the Annual General Meeting (and also for the purpese of determining how many votes a person
entitled to attend and vote may cast), a person must be entered on the register of members of the Company at 6 pm on 23
November 2011 or, in the event of any adjournment, at 6 00 p m on the date which 1s two working days before the adjourned
meebing Changes to entries on the register of members after this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any
person to attend or vote at the meeting

A member 1s entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to exercise all or any of his or her rights to attend, to speak and
to vote at the Annual General Meeting A member may appoint more than one proxy In relation to the meeting, provided that
each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by him or her A proxy need not be
a member of the Company A form of proxy for the meeting 1s enclosed

To be valid any form of proxy or other instrument appointing a proxy must be recewved by post or by hand (durng normal
business hours only) by our registrar Capita Registrars at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU by no
later than 10 30 a m on 23 November 2011 (or, If the meeting 1s adjourned, 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting,
excluding non-working days)

Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of
Its powers as a member provided that they do not do so n relation to the same shares

Copies of service agreements under which Directors of the Company are employed, and copies of the terms and conditions
of appaintment of Non-executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal
business hours from the date of this nctice until the dale of the Annual General Meeting and wili be available for inspection at
the place of the Annual General Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the meeting

You may not use any electronic address (within the meaning of section 333(4) of the Companies Act 2006) provided in this
notice of Annual General Meeting {(or 1n any related documents including the proxy form) to communicate with the Company
for any purposes other than those expressly stated
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Explanatory Notes to the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
Resolution 1 — Report and Accounts

The Directors will present the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 July 2011 together with the
Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Repert on those financial statements

Resoiution 2 — Re-appointment of Auditors

The Company 1s required to appoint auditors at each Annual General Meeting at which accounts are laid before shareholders,
to hold office until the next such meeting The resolution proposes that KPMG Audit Pic be re-appointed as auditors for the
current year

Resolution 3 — Fixing of Auditors’ Remuneration
The resolution proposes that the Directors be authorised to set the fees of the auditors

Resolution 4 — Authonity to Allot Shares

The Directors may allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any secunity into, shares only If authorised to do so
by shareholders Accordingly, Resolution 4 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution to grant new authonities to aliot shares and
grant nights to subscribe for, and convert any securities into, shares If given, these authonties will expire at the conclusion of the
Company's Annual General Meeting in 2012

Paragraph (a) of Resolution 4 will allow the Directors to allot ordinary shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £180,809 50,
representing approximately one third (33 33 per cent ) of the Company's existing 1ssued share capital and calculated as at

1 October 2011 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this notice} In accordance with the latest 1ssued
institutional guidelines, Paragraph (b) of Resolution 4 will allow the Directors to allot, including the ordinary shares referred to in
paragraph {2) of Resolution 4, further ordinary shares in connection with a pre-emptive offer by way of a nghis 1ssue to ordinary
shareholders up to a maximum nominal amount of £361,619, representing approximately two thirds (66 67 per cent ) of the
Company’s existing 1ssued share capital calculated as at 1 October 2011

As at the date of this nctice the Company holds no treasury shares

Resolution 5 — Authonty to Allot Shares for Cash

The Drectors also require a power from shareholders to allot equity secunties or sell treasury shares where they propose to do
so for cash and otherwise than to existing shareholders pro rata to their holdings Resolution 5 will be proposed as a special
resolution to grant such a power Apart from offers or invitations in proportion to the respective number of shares held, the
power will be hmited to the allotment of equity securnties and sales of treasury shares for cash up to an aggregate normunal value
of £27,121 42 (being five per cent of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital at 1 October 2011, the latest practicable date
prior to the publication of this notice) If given, this power will expire at the conclusion of the Company’s Annual General Meeting
mn 2012
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Form of Proxy

Before completing this form, please read the explanatory notes below

I/'We (name(s) in full)

of (address(es))

being (a) member(s) of the Company appoint the Chairman of the meeting

as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote on my/our behalf as directed below at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held at the offices of Ashurst LLP, Broadwalk House, 5 Appold Street, London EC2A 2HA on 25 November 2011 at
10 30 a m and at any adjournment thereof

E] Tick box if one of a multiple proxy appointment (see note 4)

Please indicate in the boxes below how you wish your votes to be cast

Against

Withheld

Vote

Reseclution 1

To receive the accounts and reports of the Directors and
auditors for the year ended 31 July 2011

[]

[]

Resolution 2

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company

Resolution 3:

To authonse the Directors to set the remuneration of the auditors

Resolution 4

To give the Directors the authonty to allot shares pursuant to
section 551 of the Companies Act 2006

L o|ga) o

L L

Resolution 5

To give the Directors the authonty to disapply pre-emphion rnights
pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Companies Act 2006

L]

[

OO g

I/We would Itke my/our proxy to vote on the resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting as indicated on this form
Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy may vote or abstain as he or she sees fit in relation to any business of the meeting

Signature

a7
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Form of Proxy continued

Notes to the form of proxy

1

o o-

o

10

As a member of the Company you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your nghts to attend, speak and
vote at a general meeting of the Company You can only appaint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes

Appointment of a proxy does net preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person If you have apponted a
proxy and attend the meeting 1n person, your proxy appointment will automatically be terminated

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent you To appoint as your
proxy a person other than the Charrman of the meeting, delete the words “the Chairman of the meeting” and insert your
proxy’s name in the space provided If you sign and return this form of proxy with no name inserted in the space provided,
the Chairman of the meeting will be deemed to be your proxy Where you appoint as your proxy someone other than the
Chairman, you are responsible for ensuring that they attend the meeting and are aware of your voting intentions I you wish
your proxy to make any comments on your behalf, you will need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give them
the relevant instructions directly

You may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy i1s appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares You
may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share If you wish to appoint more than one
proxy using this form, please photocopy this form or contact Capita Registrars for further forms of proxy When you subrut
the form of proxy, please indicate on each copy the name of the proxy and the number of shares in respect of which the
proxy 1s appointed Please also indicate by ticking the box provided if the proxy 15 one of multiple instructions being given
All forms of proxy must be signed and should be returned together in the same envelope You should send all proxies to
Capita Regstrars at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU

To direct your proxy how to vote on the resolutions, mark the appropnate box with an “X” To abstain from voting on a
resolution, select the relevant “Vote withheld” box A vote withheld s not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be
counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution If no voting indication 1s given, your proxy will vote or abstain
from voting at his or her discretion  Your proxy will vote {or abstamn from voting) as he or she thinks fit in refation to any other
matter which 1s put before the meeting

To appoint a proxy using this form, this form must be

completed and signed, D sent or delivered to Capita Registrars at PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR3 4TU, and

received by Capital Registrars no later than 10 30 a m on 23 November 201 1(or, in the case of an adjourned meeting,
48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting, excluding non-working days)

In the case of a member which 15 a company, this proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on its
behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company

Any power of attorney or any other authorty under which this proxy form 1s signed (or duly certified copy of such power or
authonty) must be included with the proxy form

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment
submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appear in the Company's register of members tn respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior)

If you submit more than one vahd proxy appointment, the appointment receved last before the latest ime for the receipt of
proxies will take precedence




Company secretary
Richard Birtles

Company number
8275732

Registered office
The Sheffield Bicincubator

40 Leavygreave Road
Sheffield S3 7RD

Independent auditor

KPMG Audit Pic

1 The Embankment
Newville Street
Leeds LS| 4DW

Solicitor

Ashurst LLP
Broadwalk House
5 Appold Street
London EC2A 2HA
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Banker

Barclays

Cambridge Business Centre
28 Chesterton Road
Cambridge CB4 3UT

Norminated advisor and broker

Seymour Pierce
20 Oid Bailey
London EC4M 7EN

Registrar

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield HD8 OGA
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Sheffield office

The Sheffield Bioincubator
40 Leavygreave Road
Sheffield $3 7RD

Cardiff office

8th Floor

Eastgate House
35-43 Newport Road
Cardiff CF24 OAB

www fusionip co uk




